
9 July 2019

NOTICE OF MEETING

POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL
will meet on

Wednesday, 10 July 2019
beginning at

7:00 pm
on the

Rooms 11/12/13, Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh SO50 9YN

TO: Councillor Richard Gomer (Chair)
Councillor Malcolm Cross (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Alan Broadhurst
Councillor Margaret Allingham
Councillor Janice Asman
Councillor Nicholas Couldrey
Councillor Jephthe Doguie
Councillor Tim Groves
Councillor Lucy Jurd
Councillor David Pragnell
Councillor Sara Tyson-Payne
Councillor Judith Grajewski
Councillor Gin Tidridge

CC: Councillor Keith House Council Leader

Staff Contacts: Laura Johnston, Performance and Governance Lead 
Specialist Tel: 023 8068 8041 Email: 
laura.johnston@eastleigh.gov.uk

Natalie Wigman, Corporate Director Tel: 023 8068 8405 
Email: natalie.wigman@eastleigh.gov.uk

GAETANA WISEMAN
Performance and Governance Manager

____________________________________________________________________

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings as well as in 

other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and other 
languages, upon request.

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


Services Officer above.
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 

sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public, and  
Councillors will be using tablet devices to access committee papers.

AGENDA

1. Public Participation    

2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 4) 

To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 30 May 2019. 

3. Apologies    

4. Declarations of Interest     

Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

5. Chair's Report    

6. Climate Change and Biodiversity    

7. Homelessness Prevention Strategy    (Pages 5 - 24)

8. Quarterly Corporate and Financial Monitoring    (Pages 25 - 60)

9. Cabinet Forward Plan    (Pages 61 - 70)

10. Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel's Work Programme    (Pages 71 - 72)

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  -

Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Thursday, 5 September 2019 at 7:00 pm

on the Rooms 11/12/13, Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh SO50 
9YN

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


1

POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL

Thursday, 30 May 2019  (7:00 pm – 8:37 pm)

PRESENT:

Councillor Gomer (Chair); Councillors Broadhurst, Cross, Allingham, 
Asman, Doguie, Groves, Tyson-Payne, Grajewski and Parker-Jones

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Couldrey and Jurd

________________________________________

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)

20. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There was no public participation on this occasion.

21. MINUTES

It was AGREED -

That the Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 14 March 2019 
be confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

22. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest relating to items of business on the 
agenda.

23. CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

The Chair thanked the previous Chair, Councillor Alan Broadhurst, for his 
work during his time chairing the Panel and welcomed Councillor 
Grajewski to the Panel.

The Chair also set out his vision for the Panel going forward:

 Being more in touch with evidence base
 Being more effective and efficient in use of time – use of task and 

finish groups for pre-scrutiny preparation
 Identifying training needs

1

Agenda Item 2



2

24. PARKING POLICY

The Panel received a report from the Environment Lead Specialist on the 
Council’s Parking Policy.  The new policy consolidated a number of 
existing policies.

Key issues highlighted included:

 Houses of Multiple Occupancy currently not being able to access a 
permit; this was proposed to change in the new policy.  There was 
concern that this would place strain on roads already at/over 
capacity

 Concern that when virtual permits are rolled out that this may cause 
neighbourly disputes as people like to see if their neighbour has a 
permit

 Need to ensure that parking enforcement is actually followed up
 Want to ensure that there are no gaps in the policy; will be an 

evolving document.
 Need to involve the right residents in the consultation
 The Panel need a representative on the Parking Working Group; 

Sara Tyson-Payne volunteered
 The Panel would hold its own informal meeting to discuss the 

issues and form a view.

25. CABINET FORWARD PLAN

The Panel considered the Forward Plan of Key Decisions.  The Panel 
requested that they consider the following issues:

 Property Acquisition Policy
 Property Transactions – number of reports, urgency powers used 

etc

It was AGREED that the report be noted.

26. POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL'S WORK 
PROGRAMME

Panel members considered their Work Programme to March 2020.

It was agreed that two task and finish groups (TFGs) be convened:

Environment and Transport (supported by Jason Light)

 Tim Groves
 Gin Tidridge or Louise Parker-Jones as a substitute
 Sara Tyson-Payne

2



3

Scrutiny of Scrutiny (supported by Natalie Wigman and Laura Johnston)

 Richard Gomer
 Sara Tyson-Payne
 Jephthe Doguie
 Malcolm Cross

It was AGREED that the Work Programme be noted.

3



This page is intentionally left blank



POLICY & PERFROMANCE AND CABINET 

Wednesday, 10th and Thursday 11th July 2019 

HOMELESSNESS & ROUGH SLEEPING STRATEGY 

Report of the Strategic Lead for Health and Wellbeing 

Recommendations

It is recommended that Cabinet:

(1) Cabinet approves the newly created Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 
for 2019-2024

Summary

 The Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 (HRA) came into force on 3 April 2018 and it represents 
one of the most significant changes in homelessness legislation for 20 years. An updated 
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy therefore comes at a very opportune time as the 
Council and its statutory and voluntary partners seek to work together to meet the requirements of 
the new Act and provide better outcomes for customers facing homelessness in Eastleigh.

Statutory Powers

Housing Act 1996 (as amended) 
Homelessness Reduction Act 2017

Strategic Implications 

1. Providing secure and good quality housing is invaluable to maintaining good 
health, improving quality of life and reducing health inequalities in the 
borough. Those individuals and communities suffering the worst health 
outcomes are often those on the lowest incomes and in the poorest standard 
of housing. “Poorer people are more likely to live in more deprived 
neighbourhoods. The more deprived the neighbourhood, the more likely it is to 
have social and environmental characteristics presenting risks to health. 
These include poor housing, higher rates of crime, poorer air quality, a lack of 
green spaces and places for children to play and more risks to safety from 
traffic.”   This Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy will play a 
significant part in addressing the two strategic priorities of: 

 Tackling social deprivation and health inequalities 

5

Agenda Item 7



Eastleigh Borough Council

 Enabling health and wellbeing  

This Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy complements the Council’s 
overarching Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the Housing Strategy. 

Financial Implications

2. There are no additional financial implications attached to this strategy. 

Risk Assessment

3. If the strategy is not adopted there is a risk that Eastleigh Borough 
Council will not meet the additional statutory duties introduced by 
the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017.  

Equality and Diversity Implications

4. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
does not relate to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, 
or fostering good relations between different people.  An Equality Impact 
Assessment has not been carried out.

Conclusion

5. The objectives and approach within this strategy are cross-cutting and 
interrelated to tackling homelessness.  The key to implementing this strategy 
is to take a person centered approach, whilst working with key partners in a 
proactive style.  The Housing team at Eastleigh Borough Council has a clear 
understanding of what needs to be achieved and the approach required in 
order to achieve the key targets within the annual Business Plan and 
personalised action plans.

ROSS MCCLEAN
STRATEGIC LEAD FOR HEALTH AND WELLBEING

Date: 28 June 2019
Contact Officer: Ross McClean 
Tel No: 02380 683367
e-mail: ross.mcclean@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: 1

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 

6



Eastleigh Borough Council

extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

Appendix 1: Location Map showing indicative link road 

7



This page is intentionally left blank



Homelessness 
and 

Rough Sleeping 
Strategy 

2019-2024

June 2019

9



2

Contents
 Foreword Page 3

 Introduction Page 4

 Current Position Page 5

 Operating Model and Team Structure Page 8

 Strategic Objectives Page 9

 Strategic Approach Page 10

 Summary Page 13

 Action Plan Page 14

10



3

Foreword
This strategy clearly sets out our approach to tackling homelessness within the 
Borough and signals our intention to deliver a service which is compassionate, fair 
and effective at helping residents at the time when they need our help the most.

It reinforces our commitment to end homelessness in the Borough and builds on the 
excellent work carried out by the Housing team over the last five years. It recognises 
that there are few things that contribute more to our residents well-being than having 
a secure place they can call home.  

In line with our Corporate Plan and key objectives, over the next five years, Eastleigh 
Borough Council will fulfil its statutory duties under the Homelessness Reduction Act 
2017 by working in partnership with key agencies; adopting a person-centred 
approach and being proactive in tackling homelessness. 

As a Council we will work tirelessly to remove the stigma of homelessness 
recognising that any one of us could, through bad luck, a relationship breakdown or a 
downturn in the economy, find ourselves facing homelessness; and should the worst 
happen, we are committed to being a source of help, guidance and support for 
residents so that they are able to retain their home or quickly find a new one.

This strategy contributes to our overall vision to improve the health and wellbeing of 
everyone who lives and works in the borough so that all our residents have an equal 
opportunity to flourish and live long, happy and healthy lives.  It is a core component 
of our commitment to supporting and creating sustainable communities and we 
believe the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy will help us deliver our 
vision.

Cllr Tina Campbell
Cabinet Member for Social Policy

11



4

Introduction
The Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 (HRA) came into force on 3 April 2018 and it 
represents one of the most significant changes in homelessness legislation for 20 years. An 
updated Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy therefore comes at a very 
opportune time as the Council and its statutory and voluntary partners seek to work together 
to meet the requirements of the new Act and provide better outcomes for customers facing 
homelessness in Eastleigh.

Homelessness is often associated with poverty and is a social determinant of mental health. 
Households who are homeless or threatened with homelessness contain some of the most 
vulnerable members of our communities. Being homeless can also delay discharge from 
hospital, lengthen stays and cause repeated admissions.

There are a number of risk factors associated with the likelihood of someone becoming 
homeless. The risks range from drug and alcohol issues, bereavement, and experience of 
the criminal justice system, to the wider determinants of health such as inequality, 
unemployment, housing supply and affordability.  

In 2014, 80% of homeless people in England reported experiencing mental health problems, 
with 45% having been diagnosed with a mental health condition. Studies have also shown 
the prevalence of mental health conditions amongst the homeless is higher compared to the 
general population.1

Eastleigh Borough Council, alongside key partners, has worked hard for the last five years to 
prevent homelessness year on year and has a strong record of performance compared to its 
nearest statistical neighbours. 

Despite the above successes, the next few years are likely to bring considerable challenges. 
Homelessness in Hampshire and the UK is steadily rising and the continued roll out of 
welfare reform measures will inevitably impact on many households who are already seeking 
housing advice and support from the Council.

1 Public Health England rationale for Homelessness https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/  

12

https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/


5

Current Position
The HRA came into force in April 2018 and introduced increased duties on Local Authorities 
in relation to homelessness. The Act places a greater emphasis on the prevention of 
homelessness at an early stage and partnership working with external agencies.

The key changes include: 

 An increase in the definition of ‘threatened with homelessness’ from 28 to 56 days 
 The introduction of a 56 day prevention and/or relief duty in relation to all households
 A duty to work with all households to assess needs and create a Personalised 

Housing Plan with reasonable steps for both the applicant and Local Authority  
 A duty on specified public bodies to refer households to the Local Authority where 

there is a threat of homelessness 

Due to significant changes introduced by the HRA, in particular in relation to the stage at 
which a formal homeless application is taken, statistical performance since April 2018 is not 
comparable to that of the preceding years. However, in planning for the future it is still 
important to review performance of the years prior to the HRA.  

Figure 1 below demonstrates that during the period 2012/13 to 2017/18 Eastleigh Borough 
Council saw a reduction in the number of formal homeless applications to the Authority.  
During the same period Figure 2 shows an increase in the number of cases where a 
successful homeless prevention was achieved, which directly influenced the downward trend 
seen in Figure 1.   

Figure 1: 
Number of homeless applications received by Eastleigh Borough Council 

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
0

10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

13



6

Figure 2:
Number of homeless prevention cases dealt with by Eastleigh Borough Council 

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
0

50

100

150

200

This data demonstrates that Eastleigh Borough Council already had a strong focus on the 
prevention of homelessness prior to the introduction of the HRA, placing the Authority in a 
strong position to successfully implement the additional duties brought about by the Act.  
Figure 3 below shows the volume of homeless cases dealt with by the Authority during the 
first full year of the HRA.    

Figure 3: 
Number of homeless approaches and outcomes dealt with by Eastleigh Borough 
Council during the period 03/04/2018 to 31/03/2019

Early Intervention Advice 173
Homelessness Prevented 120
Homelessness Relieved 54
Currently Under Prevention 28
Currently Under Relief 14
Main Duty Accepted 1
Total 390

Whilst in comparison to Figure 1 there has been a steep increase in the footfall of applicants 
presenting for homelessness advice and assistance, this is due to the requirements of the 
HRA and in particular the associated recording requirements. 

The data shows that of the 390 approaches, 173 were assisted with advice at an early 
intervention stage.  A further 174 successful outcomes were achieved at the prevention and 
relief stage with an additional 42 cases ongoing at the time of recording.  There was one 
case where a successful outcome was not achieved at the relief stage, resulting in the 
Authority accepting the main housing duty.   

Figure 4 below shows the latest indicators taken from the public health profiles which 
compare Eastleigh’s homelessness performance against its CIPFA nearest statistical 
neighbours. This outcome data shows that Eastleigh has the joint lowest number of 
households in temporary accommodation and lowest number of households classified as 
homeless at a rate of per 1000 households against our nearest neighbours. 

14



7

Figure 4:
Public Health England data 2

Figure 5 below shows the numbers of rough sleepers recorded in the borough during a 
yearly snapshot estimate on one night during the autumn.  Whilst it is only snapshot 
information, it does reflect Eastleigh’s low numbers of rough sleepers. 

Figure 5:
Rough sleeper estimate

Year 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Number 1 0 0 0 0

Figure 6 below shows Eastleigh Borough Council’s spend over the last 5 years in tackling 
homelessness.  Spending on homelessness prevention loans (Tenancy Start Up loans and 
Rent Top Up loans) has enabled the Authority to achieve the successful homeless outcomes 
seen the homelessness prevention statistics above.  

Figure 6:
Spending on homelessness 

Activity 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Bed and Breakfast £165,191 £115,264 £90,478 £65,802 £111,303

Homelessness 
Prevention Loans 

£108,656 £107,326 £123,348 £82,525 £106,153

2 Public Health England data as at 06/06/2019 
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/search/homelessness#page/0/gid/1/pat/6/par/E12000008/
ati/101/are/E07000086/nn/nn-1-E07000086 

15

https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/search/homelessness#page/0/gid/1/pat/6/par/E12000008/ati/101/are/E07000086/nn/nn-1-E07000086
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/search/homelessness#page/0/gid/1/pat/6/par/E12000008/ati/101/are/E07000086/nn/nn-1-E07000086


8

Operating Model and Team Structure
The housing team are responsible for the following processes and activities:

 Assess and verify Hampshire Home Choice (HHC) applications 
 Assess, investigate and verify homeless applications 
 Provide personalised housing advice and assistance
 Work with customers to seek and secure housing options 
 Accommodation and support referrals  
 Arrange interim accommodation
 Assess affordability 
 Manage loan applications 
 Agree repayment plan and administration of invoices and loan payments  
 Bed and Breakfast reconciliation 
 Allocation of social housing
 Reviews and complaints 
 Produce statistical returns
 Out of hours emergency service 

The housing team is spread across the Customer Service, Case Management and Specialist 
areas and consists of 8 FTE Housing Case Management Officers and two Housing and 
Homelessness Specialists.  The distribution of activities across the different areas is broadly 
as follows:  

Customer Services
Basic HHC queries

Scanning documents
First response phone calls

Case Management – Triage
Complex HHC queries

Basic homelessness advice
Financial administration

Case Management – Advisor
Complex HHC queries
Homeless applications

Housing options
Interim accommodation

Loan applications

Housing and Homelessness 
Specialists

Escalation point – complex cases
Authorising invoices

Loan approval
Allocation of social housing

Reviews and complaints
Statistical returns

16



9

Strategic Objectives
Providing secure and good quality housing is invaluable to maintaining good health, 
improving quality of life and reducing health inequalities in the borough. Those individuals 
and communities suffering the worst health outcomes are often those on the lowest incomes 
and in the poorest standard of housing. “Poorer people are more likely to live in more 
deprived neighbourhoods. The more deprived the neighbourhood, the more likely it is to 
have social and environmental characteristics presenting risks to health. These include poor 
housing, higher rates of crime, poorer air quality, a lack of green spaces and places for 
children to play and more risks to safety from traffic.”3  

This Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy will play a significant part in addressing 
the two strategic priorities of: 

 Tackling social deprivation and health inequalities 
 Enabling health and wellbeing  

This Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy complements the Council’s overarching 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the Housing Strategy. 

There are also a number of strategies and policies that are closely related to the 
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy. These policies and procedures are reviewed 
and renewed to ensure they remain up-to-date and relevant:

 Severe Weather Emergency Protocol (SWEP)
 Empty Properties Policy
 Safeguarding Policy
 Armed Forces Community Covenant

The following external strategies and agencies also impact on homelessness in Eastleigh 
and must also be considered:

 Hampshire Home Choice Allocations Framework
 Accommodation and support providers
 West Hampshire Clinical Commissioning Group locality plans for Eastleigh and the 

southern parishes 

The Council ensures compliance with homelessness legislation and our direction of travel is 
working towards100% successful homelessness resolutions by 2025.  

The Council will measure its performance by recording the following outputs:

 Number of households placed in Bed and Breakfast 
 Number of H-CLIC4 cases (under prevention and under relief)
 Number of overdue H-CLIC tasks
 Number of H-CLIC cases over 56 days

3 Marmot Review, Fair Society, Healthy Lives page 79
4 H-CLIC The Homelessness Case Level Information Collection

17



10

Strategic Approach
The Council’s approach will focus on:  

 Taking a person-centered approach, ensuring people are well informed about their 
housing options

 Providing sufficient housing stock to cope with demand
 Taking a preventative approach to tackling homelessness whilst supporting 

sustainable communities 
 Working partnership with key agencies
 Proactive approach to tackle rough sleeping

Person-centered Approach

 Review recently introduced non-appointment drop-in service designed to maximise 
opportunities to prevent homelessness at the first point of contact, minimise repetitive 
presentations and ensure an efficient and responsive service

 Continual review of template letters and forms to ensure they are user-friendly and 
contain relevant information 

 Build on the existing web pages to give a greater level of advice online
 Staff training in homelessness and other relevant legislation, softer skills and mental 

health/support needs (for example managing suicidal conversations and Connect 5 
training)5 

 Continual review of application processing times and quality to ensure a high level of 
service is provided consistently 

Housing Supply

 New build programme
o Continue to support the delivery of new homes including affordable homes, 

working with developers, land-owners, Housing Associations, local 
communities and government agencies

o Continue rise of new home completions (1162 in 2018/19 including 461 
affordable homes)

 Increase supply of temporary and privately rented accommodation
o Work with Fledge (supported housing provider) to deliver new units of 

supported accommodation 
o Work with the Society of St James to explore the expansion of their property 

portfolio within the Eastleigh borough for use by homeless households 
o Liaison with the Council’s Asset Management team regarding use of empty 

homes for use by homeless households 
o Work with local landlords to increase supply

 Increase throughput of temporary and privately rented accommodation
o Work with support agencies to improve tenancy sustainment
o Continual review of Tenancy Start Up scheme to ensure it remains attractive 

and user friendly to landlords

5 Connect 5 is a mental health promotion training programme developed from a unique collaboration 
between Public Health England (PHE) & Health Education England (HEE). It is designed to increase 
the confidence and core skills of front line staff so that they can be more effective in having 
conversations about mental health and wellbeing, help people to manage mental health problems and 
increase their resilience and mental wellbeing through positive changes.

18



11

o Continue close work with Housing Benefit team to expand use of 
Discretionary Housing Payments to prevent homelessness by providing 
financial assistance towards rent arrears, tenancy start up and removal costs 

o Increase work with tenants to encourage move on (encourage repayment of 
debts to ensure housing register application is maintained, support to deal 
with debt and tenancy management issues, use of Rent Top Up loans and 
Discretionary Housing Payments to assist with arrears and shortfall)

o For tenants who have moved on, explore ways to encourage landlords to relet 
to other households requiring accommodation  

Preventative Approach

 Offer advice and assistance to all customers on the day of approach regardless of 
whether they meet statutory requirements 

 Ensure the out of hours service is operated by experienced officers of the Housing 
team with a homelessness background 

 Identify support needs at an early stage and refer to appropriate services (social 
inclusion, mental health, young persons, domestic abuse, ex-offenders)  

 Increase use of Discretionary Housing Payments and Rent Top Up loans to clear or 
reduce arrears in order to prevent homelessness

 Greater emphasis on mediation and negotiation between families, landlords and 
Housing Associations

 Collaboration with neighbouring Local Authorities to review implementation of 
Hampshire-wide agreed protocol for Duty to Refer 

 Creative use of Local Welfare Allowance for emergency situations (such as travel to 
access accommodation and utility bill top up)

 Ensure households on low incomes are assisted with essential items required to set 
up home

o Provision of funding to SCRATCH6 to supply tailored furniture packages to 
households following the resolution of their homelessness 

o Continued partnership working with SCRATCH to expand the range of 
household items supplied (including paint, flooring and white goods)

o Review progress of recently introduced Household Items loan scheme 
 Continue and expand use of hard-to-let sheltered accommodation to provide housing 

options for applicants aged over 55
o Identify low demand units advertised through Hampshire Home Choice 
o Further develop relationships with Housing Associations and Local 

Authorities operating outside of the Hampshire Home Choice framework to 
increase availability of hard to let stock 

 Work in partnership with Eastleigh CitA (formerly Citizens Advice Bureau) to share 
intelligence and help develop sustainable individual client plans to prevent 
homelessness

Partnership Approach

 Deliver elected member and key partner training sessions to provide information 
about legislation change, service access and to promote Eastleigh Borough Council’s 
strategic approach 

 Build upon close working relationship with Members and continue monthly meetings 
with Portfolio holder

 Foster stronger relationships and pathways with Housing Associations and other 
accommodation providers 

6 SCRATCH – Southampton City And Region Action to Combat Hardship

19



12

 Negotiate reciprocal move arrangements with other Local Authorities to increase 
housing options for households needing to move out of area 

 Expand on close relationship with the borough’s largest housing provider VIVID 
Homes Limited 

o Joint appointments for arrears cases with a threat of eviction
o Consideration of Management Moves where appropriate
o Joint visits to households in temporary accommodation to encourage move 

on and address tenancy management issues  
o Improve links with VIVID’s homelessness prevention support service

 Ensure suitability of emergency accommodation provision
o Bed and Breakfast inspections 
o Explore introduction of customer satisfaction surveys following Bed and 

Breakfast placements 
o Introduce Out of Borough Placement Policy  
o Develop alternatives to Bed and Breakfast placements by expanding on close 

working relationships with Winchester Night Shelter and Housing 
Associations with guest rooms within their sheltered accommodation 
schemes

o Increase use of mediation to sustain existing accommodation temporarily 
whilst suitable alternatives are explored  

 Continue the joint funded post of the Housing and Community Care Adviser who 
works across Housing and Adult Services ensuring close links and effective 
resolution for vulnerable cases 

 Utilitise Flexible Homelessness Grant to top up County Social Inclusion funding to 
secure continued provision of local drop-in support service for families and a wider 
range of single homeless cases 

 Increase referrals into Supported Families Programme 
o Training frontline staff on referral process and benefits of programme
o Input into weekly Early Help Hub agenda

 Input into regular agendas for Tactical Community Safety Partnership, MARAC and 
MAPPA (and attendance at meetings where appropriate) 

 Attendance at regular meetings with local support providers (Two Saints and 
Together) to discuss referrals, move on and contractual issues and improvements

 Regular meetings with other Local Authorities and Registered Providers to share best 
practice and discuss any issues 

 Work with Inclusion and other Hampshire Local Authorities to develop a joint working 
protocol 

 Provide input into development of a network of key partners to help tackle health 
inequality and deprivation (including Food Bank, Department of Work and Pensions, 
CitA, Two Saints and Fledge)

Rough Sleeping

 Continue to implement and review recently updated SWEP which takes a 
compassionate and reactive approach to the provision of shelter to rough sleepers 
during periods of severe weather

 Continue to work closely with social inclusion provider to respond quickly to reports of 
rough sleepers in the borough by providing efficient and effective outreach advice 
and assistance 

 Increase public awareness of Street Link to encourage reporting of rough sleepers  

20



13

Summary
The objectives and approach within this strategy are cross-cutting and interrelated to tackling 
homelessness.

The key to implementing this strategy is to take a person centered approach, whilst working 
with key partners in a proactive style.

The Housing team at Eastleigh Borough Council has a clear understanding of what needs to 
be achieved and the approach required in order to achieve the key targets within the annual 
Business Plan and personalised action plans.

Eastleigh Borough Council is passionate about tackling health inequalities and social 
deprivation and the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy compliments the 
overarching Health and Wellbeing Strategy of the Council to achieve corporate objectives.

21



14

Action Plan
Action Who When
Review drop in service Housing and Homelessness Specialists November 2019
Review template letters 
and forms

Housing and Homelessness Specialists Ongoing 

Website Housing and Homelessness Specialists June 2020
Staff training All housing staff Ongoing

Pe
rs

on
-c

en
tr

ed
 

A
pp

ro
ac

h

Application reviews Housing and Homelessness Specialists 
Housing Case Management Team 
Leader

Ongoing 

New build programme Housing Enabling Specialist Ongoing
Supply of temporary and 
privately rented 
accommodation

Housing and Homelessness Specialists 
Asset Management team 
Housing Case Management Officers

Annual review at end 
of Financial Year

H
ou

si
ng

 
Su

pp
ly

Throughput of temporary 
and privately rented 
accommodation

Housing and Homelessness Specialists 
Housing Case Management Officers

Ongoing

Provision of advice and 
assistance

Housing Case Management Officers Daily through duty 
service

Out of hours service Housing and Homelessness Specialists 
Housing Case Management Officers

Responsive service 

Identification of support 
needs and appropriate 
referrals

Housing Case Management Officers Daily

Use of Discretionary 
Housing Payments and 
Rent Top Up loans

Housing Case Management Officers  
Housing and Homelessness Specialists 
(review) 
Senior Housing Benefit and 
Homelessness Specialist (review)

Ongoing 
Annual review at end 
of Financial Year

Mediation Housing and Homelessness Specialists 
(training)  
Housing Case Management Officers 
(implementation)

December 2019 
(training)
Ongoing 

Duty to refer Housing and Homelessness Specialists Quarterly 
Homelessness 
Officers Group 

Local Welfare Allowance Housing Case Management Officers  
Housing and Homelessness Specialists

Responsive service

Household items Housing Case Management Officers  
Housing and Homelessness Specialists

Responsive service
Ongoing review

Hard to let sheltered 
accommodation 

Housing Case Management Officers  
Housing and Homelessness Specialists

Ongoing

Pr
ev

en
ta

tiv
e 

A
pp

ro
ac

h

Partnership working with 
Eastleigh CitA

Housing Case Management Officers  
Housing and Homelessness Specialists

Ongoing

Member and partner 
training

Housing and Homelessness Specialists February 2020

Partnership working with 
Members 

Housing and Homelessness Specialists Ongoing
Monthly meetings

Housing Associations Housing and Homelessness Specialists Bi monthly meetings
Reciprocal arrangements Housing and Homelessness Specialists Responsive service
VIVID Homes Limited Housing Case Management Officers  

Housing and Homelessness Specialists
Responsive service
Periodic meetings

Emergency 
accommodation

Housing and Homelessness Specialists August 2020

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

A
pp

ro
ac

h

Joint funding of Housing 
and Community Care 
Advisor

Operational Manager Ongoing

22



15

Social Inclusion service Housing and Homelessness Specialists Quarterly review 
meetings

Supported Families 
Programmes

Housing and Homelessness Specialists Periodic meetings
Weekly input

Agenda input Housing and Homelessness Specialists Input as per periodic 
meetings

Local support providers Housing and Homelessness Specialists Quarterly (Social 
Inclusion) 
Monthly (Mental 
Health)

Local Authorities and 
Registered Providers

Housing and Homelessness Specialists
Senior Housing Benefit and 
Homelessness Specialist

Quarterly 
(homelessness)
Bi monthly 
(Hampshire Home 
Choice)

Inclusion Joint Working 
Protocol

Housing and Homelessness Specialists Quarterly 
Homelessness 
Officers Group

Health inequality network Health and Wellbeing Lead Specialist Ongoing
SWEP Housing Case Management Officers  

Housing and Homelessness Specialists
Responsive service
Annual review in 
March

Joint working with 
outreach service

Housing Case Management Officers  
Housing and Homelessness Specialists

Responsive service

R
ou

gh
 

Sl
ee

pi
ng

Street Link Housing Case Management Officers  
Housing and Homelessness Specialists

Ongoing

23



This page is intentionally left blank



POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL 

Wednesday, 10 July 2019 

CABINET

THURSDAY, 11 JULY 2019

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL MONITORING 
REPORT Q1 2019/20

Report of the Head of Performance and Governance, Strategic 
Planning Manager and Head of Finance 

Recommendations

For Policy and Performance

It is recommended that the Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel note the 
performance and financial position of the Council in Q1 and make any 
recommendations to Cabinet based on this data and information.

For Cabinet

It is recommended that Cabinet: 

Note the performance and financial position of the Council in Q1 and consider any 
recommendations from Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel.

 

Summary

This report presents the Council’s quarterly financial and performance position for the first 
quarter of 2019/20 and pulls out significant and emerging financial and performance 
issues. Key Performance Indicators for service areas are outlined in Appendix 1 of the 
report.  

The financial monitoring for the first quarter of 2019 is projecting favourable variances 
totalling £94,000 for 2019/20.

The Community Investment Programme budget for 2019/20 is £93.2m of which £3.75m 
had been spent as at 26 June 2019, as highlighted in appendix 3.

25

Agenda Item 8



Eastleigh Borough Council

Statutory Powers
Local Government and Housing Act 1989, Sections 41 and 42

Local Government Act 1972, Section 151

Strategic Implications 

1. This report concerns all of the Council’s ten Corporate Plan objectives 
showing levels of progress towards achieving those objectives and highlights 
emerging performance and financial issues and variances.    

Introduction

2. This is the first in a series of ongoing quarterly reports giving an overview of 
significant operational (service) performance issues across portfolios; together 
with any significant financial variances and emerging issues for quarter 1 (Q1) 
of 2019/20. 

3. This more robust approach to combined financial and performance reporting 
follows the Council’s aspirations to be more data and performance-led as part 
of its Future Eastleigh transformation programme and results in quarterly 
reporting to Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel and Cabinet. Information 
has been to Management Team and relevant information sent to Portfolio 
Leads.

4. Appendix 1 shows the Council’s Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) at 
operational (service) level, with data from April and May of Q1.
  

5. Appendix 2 is the Q1 financial monitoring summary.

6. Appendix 3 is the Q1 community Investment Programme summary.

7. Appendix 4 outlines the performance and financial monitoring risk assessment 
for Q1 of 2019/20. 

Executive summary 

8. The financial monitoring for the first quarter of 2019 is projecting favourable 
variances totalling £94,000 for 2019/20, as summarised in Appendix 2. The 
financial performance of all services has been discussed with spending 
officers, and significant variances, including transfers to and from reserves, 
are explained in the body of this report. It is worth highlighting that staffing 
variances are now highlighted in each service, to ensure a full picture of 
financial performance within the area. Historically this has been reported 
separately. 

9. The Council continues to report a healthy financial position as at the first 
quarter of 2019/20. As reported in the Financial Outturn report, financial 

26



Eastleigh Borough Council

training to Senior Managers and Service leads has been rolled out in the first 
quarter of 2019/20, to ensure robust monitoring of the financial position. This 
process has received positive feedback and the Finance team and Service 
leads will continue to refine/develop processes to accurately calculate 
forecast outturns and the future financial outlook.

10.Although it is early in the financial year, this report details financial issues that 
may arise and should be brought to the attention of Councillors. Looking 
further ahead, forecast variances for each budget book page will be 
considered Medium Term Financial Plan process, leading to revised budgets 
for 2019/20 and 2020/21.

Performance successes 

11.There were a number of key performance successes in the first quarter of the 
year worthy of celebration; demonstrating the Council’s ongoing commitment 
to delivering for its customers and communities.

 Housing programme: The Council’s housing programme was reporting a 
healthy position by the end of Q1. The programme currently consists of ten 
small-large housing sites, and to date 317 new homes have been acquired by 
the Council or its housing company (Aspect Building Communities).  144 of 
these new homes have been completed.  The Council’s involvement in these 
10 sites will mean it has facilitated the planned delivery of approx. 2,000 new 
homes across a range of tenures, plus a strategic development site on land 
west of Horton Heath which the Council has owned since February 2018.  In 
June 2019, six out of the ten development sites in the programme were in 
contract and four of these were under construction.  Leah Gardens, Eastleigh 
is completed.  All homes are being delivered by the Council, its housing 
company or partners and offer affordable tenure or Private Sector Rented 
accommodation (with tenancy terms specified by the Council and managed by 
a high quality Registered Provider). 

 Arts and Culture: A fun packed schedule of ‘summer social’ events started in 
June with the free ‘Eastleigh unwrapped’ festival attracting an additional 7,000 
visitors to the town on June 22. There was also success for the service during 
the quarter with a £350,000 grant secured from the Arts Council to reinvest in 
the service.   

 Architectural award: The Council and its architects scoped the prestigious 
RIBA South regional architectural award during this period for its £28m Places 
Leisure, Eastleigh health and fitness centre.    

 Elections: Despite the timescales, the elections team delivered Local and 
European elections just three weeks apart in May. This presented a significant 
challenge, however the hard work of the team along with the contribution of 
many Council employees and other external staff made both events run 
smoothly.

 Primary Authority work:  Continued to go from strength to strength during 
Q1 with a member of staff elected to join the Primary Authority Commercial 
Practitioners’ Forum and other companies requesting to become primary 
authority partners. The Council  acts as a single point of contact for a number 

27



Eastleigh Borough Council

of  local and national companies on environmental health matters including; 
health and safety, food hygiene and environmental protection, assuring 
regulatory practices and procedures and providing essential advice and 
guidance.

 Platform 4: A new, free, business support and advisory service available to 
local start-ups and established companies across the borough was launched 
at the Eastleigh Business Conference in June. More information available at 
www.eastleigh.gov.uk/business/platform-4.  Wessex House, the Council’s 
business centre also launched its new website in April; aimed at attracting 
even more tenants to its flexible ‘easy in, easy out’ rentable office space in the 
centre of town. 

 Parksport: The Council’s full summer programme of sporting activities 
running throughout the summer holidays for 8-16 year-olds was given a boost 
in Q1 with two local sponsors secured.    

Performance considerations  

12. In terms of (service) performance the Council is in a period of adjustment, 
having undergone significant organisational redesign following its Future 
Eastleigh transformation programme. This journey of change and continues 
and in some service areas work is ongoing to redesign processes and ensure 
the correct level of resource and skill is in place within the Council to best 
meet customer need. Requirement for further process redesign work across 
some services, an increase in demand and difficulties in recruiting staff with 
specialist technical knowledge (in some areas) are issues having an impact 
on performance. Most notably Q1 has been a difficult period for Direct 
Services and Council Tax, with some performance concerns also arising in 
Democratic Services. 

13.Lack of ability to recruit into certain specialist/technical posts continues to 
present a clear risk to the Council. The job market is very buoyant and job 
seekers have a lot of choice. The Council is continuing to look critically at key 
posts and ensure it remains an attractive employer. Currently the Council is 
using a combination of market supplements and agencies (where appropriate) 
to ensure hard to fill posts are filled. A report is coming to Management Team 
in Q2 focusing on staff turnover and recruitment opportunities and 
approaches.  

Significant performance 

14.The following significant performance information raised during Q1 of 2019/20 
is outlined below. A summary of the Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for 
service areas is outlined in appendix 1. 

15.Direct Services: The service has reported a £30,000 overspend on its 
vehicle fleet this quarter (more information in financial variances, paragraph 
28). The service has suffered some continuing issues with missed bins 
following a difficult end of year (2018/19) as a result of high sickness absence 

28

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/business/platform-4


Eastleigh Borough Council

levels. Numbers of uncollected bins remain above target (<300) caused in 
part by the service’s struggles to service new homes due to increased 
development across the borough and difficulty in accessing some properties. 
 

16.Route optimisation software has been procured and work is underway to 
remodel rounds and help meet increased demand with the aim of 
implementing round changes in the autumn. The service is in the process of 
reviewing its driver policy and will be looking at introducing mandatory 
assessments for drivers to ensure continuation of staff development and best 
practice. 

17.The service were also struggling with  answering complaints within service 
level agreement timescales (15 working days) with a total of 33 complaints 
received for Direct Services (the highest since October 2018) out of a total of 
55 across the Council in May; these complaints relating mainly to missed bins. 
Direct Services are addressing this with additional training and support. 

18.Council Tax: Positive news this quarter is that Key Performance Indicators 
(KPIs) in relation to % of NDR and Council tax collected show a positive 
position and were on target. However, from a performance perspective Q1 of 
2019/20 has also been a difficult period in terms of meeting customer 
demand. The service has a high backlog of work (approx. 6,000 items in 
June) complicated by year end requirements. Response to customer 
enquiries has increased from a target of three working days to more than five 
working days. The percentage of general council tax enquiries responded to 
within three working days stood at 12% in May and 16% in April. 

19.Additional temporary resource was put in place towards the end of the quarter 
in the Case Management team to alleviate the backlog, this has created a 
non-recurrent overspend as outlined in paragraph 46. Other permanent 
recruitment is also underway to replace some Case Management roles that 
have left the organisation which has been funded by the Change and 
Improvement programme. There is also a project underway investigating the 
feasibility of the Customer Service Centre taking on additional actions in order 
to increase the amount of enquiries resolved at first point of contact, improve 
customer service and reduce the amount of enquiries passed to the Case 
Management team. 

20.This quarter’s increase in workload followed the conclusion of a resourcing 
plan which ended in Q4 of 2018/19. This was aimed at tackling previous work 
backlogs through the use of temporary agency staff. During Q4 of 2018/19 the 
plan helped reduce backlogs significantly to under 1,000 items. 

21.Moving forward the next quarter of 2019/20 may be impacted by the loss of 
the Senior Specialist in this area (although this vacancy has been recruited to 
and replacement is due to start in mid-August). The team are also behind on 
responding to Freedom of information requests. 

22.Democratic Services: Following the loss of a longstanding member of 
democratic staff and Case Management resource also leaving the 

29



Eastleigh Borough Council

organisation within Q4 of 2018/19, performance levels have been affected by 
lack of specialist/technical, knowledge in this area. This disruption has had 
some impact on meeting Key Performance Indicators and service standards. 
The team has been operating with one senior Democratic Services Officer, 
although a new member of staff recently joined the service in mid- April and is 
currently in training and there are plans in place to train additional case 
management resource in this area. 

23.Corporate Complaints: In the last six months the corporate complaints 
process has been remodelled with complaints being managed and monitored 
through the Council’s Salesforce system enabling improved monitoring and 
transparency. However, some departments are taking time to adjust and 
answer complaints within the designated 15 working day response time. In 
April, 20 level one complaints were received across the Council compared to 
a sharp 63% increase (55) in May. The data for the last three years has 
remained fairly static this quarter and shows some seasonal trends with 
spikes in May over the last two years. 

24.Following the overhaul of the complaints process, figures are likely to fluctuate 
as we improve our understanding of complaints versus service requests and 
third party requests (complaints relating to 3rd parties, e.g Hampshire County 
Council). The following table gives an overview of level one complaints   
received over the last three years (2017-2019) for the Q1 period. 

Month/level 1 
actuals

Month/level 1 
actuals

Month/level 1 
actuals

Year April May June

2019 20 55 TBC

2018 19 Approx 60 (although 
data not reliable for 
this period due to 
reporting system fault)

Approx 45 
(although data 
not reliable for 
this period due 
to reporting 
system fault)  

2017 24 28 30

25. In April of Q1 63% of complaints were answered outside of service level 
agreement and 46% out of SLA in May – mainly in the Waste and Recycling 
area. Historically this department generates more customer complaints than 
any other predominantly in relation to missed bins. A new complaints report 
has now been created in Salesforce to collate complaints data more easily 
and ensure information is passed to those affected departments and the 
relevant Corporate Director to improve complaint resolution. An annual 
compliments and complaints report is produced for Policy and Performance 
Committee and analyses complaints information in more detail.  

30



Eastleigh Borough Council

Additional performance issues  

26.Highways Agency Services: As a result of a restructure in Hampshire 
County Council (HCC) Highways and increased costs to HCC from remaining 
Gen3 contractors for Minor Works Engineering Projects, there has been a 
reduction in work for the Engineering Team. Recent discussions with HCC are 
looking more favourable with local authority CIL funded projects across the 
County showing potential as a source of income for EBC’s Transport & 
Engineering Team in delivering minor works. In addition, new contractors are 
being sought as providers in the Gen 3 framework and EBC are making a 
case to be included for the provision of a design and build service which will 
increase income. In the meantime vacancies are not being filled and agency 
staff used as and when there is work. First Quarter Claim to be submitted in 
near future.

Significant financial variances and emerging issues

27.The financial performance across all services has been discussed with 
spending officers. The significant variances and emerging issues are 
discussed in the following paragraphs 28-50, along with explanations from the 
responsible officers. The reasons for variances have been discussed with 
Management Team and shared with Portfolio Leads and actions are being 
taken where necessary.

£000's
Transport Operation and Fleet para 28 (30)
Borough Council Services Highways Non 
Agency para 29 20
Borough council services Transport Policy 
para 30 33
Air Quality para 31 (20)
Renewable Energy para 32 24
Countryside Management para 33 (40)
Arts and Culture para 36 (50)
Housing & Council Tax Support para 39 (25)
Support Services para 40 88
Development Management para 41 70
Strategic Planning para 42 86
Corporation Estates para 44 252
Service Delivery Specialist para 45 86
Service Delivery Case Management para 46 (85)
Local Area Services 47 40
Eastleigh Business Centre para 48 (50)
Other 7
Non Service Related Items para 50 (312)

31



Eastleigh Borough Council

Total 94

28.Transport Operation and Fleet (Direct Services) is forecasting an 
overspend of £30,000. This is due to the procurement of an additional smaller 
waste collection vehicle and retaining a vehicle due for replacement to service 
new housing developments. This will increase service costs as well as 
commitment to additional running costs. In 2018/19 there were additional 
costs for an ageing and larger fleet (which is expected to continue into this 
financial year). 

29.Borough Council Services Highways Non Agency is reporting a £20,000 
underspend. This relates to additional income for road closures. As reported 
in the Provisional Outturn 2018/19 report road closures is continuing to 
perform better than anticipated and is forecasting a favourable position.

30.Borough Council Services Transport Policy: Is forecasting a net 
underspend of £33,000. £40,000 underspend due to the withdrawal of certain 
bus services on the routes by the bus operators and savings made for the 
Borough Council as a consequence of not paying the Borough’s share of the 
subsidy for that service. Consideration will be given to the use of the subsidy 
in the future and whether to tender for an alternative provider of those 
services. In addition to this there is a forecast reduction of direct grants to the 
Council, resulting in a £7,000 reduction in income.  This relates to travel plan 
fees and monitoring where EBC are working with Southampton City Council to 
recruit additional staff funded by section 106 contributions.  The income to 
date is in relation to the Bus Services Grant and Street Naming and 
Numbering.

31.Air Quality: Is forecasting an overspend of £20,000. This is due to anticipated 
additional costs of £14,000 on maintaining the equipment for this service. In 
addition to this analysis of data based on historic trends suggests that there 
will be a reduction in come for licenses of £6,000. A report will be brought to 
Cabinet in July showing the latest air quality data, and proposing a step 
change in the Council’s response to the challenge of poor air quality; 
investment in new equipment to more accurately measure a wider range of 
pollutants and resetting the budget for the service over the medium term.

32.Renewable Energy: Is reporting a favourable variance of £24,000. With the 
installation of solar panels, the Council is continuing to achieve a net surplus 
through feed-in tariffs and grid sales which has created a saving of £24,000.

33.Countryside Management: Is reporting a net £40,000 overspend. This is due 
to two main reasons.  Firstly, direct costs to the Itchen Valley Country Park 
(IVCP) café, namely food, are high.  The Country Parks Visitor Services 
Manager has now been successful in recruiting a new Café Manager who will 
be able to improve the Café direct costs with a view to making the Café more 
profitable.  There is also encouraging news that takings were up 91% in May 

32



Eastleigh Borough Council

compared to the same period the year before.  There have also been 
discussions initiated around the procurement of food which should generate a 
more tactical pricing approach, generating more profit. From a performance 
perspective there has been some positive news in terms of visitor numbers 
with Itchen Valley Country Park reporting visitor numbers up 109% compared 
to Q1 of 18/19. 

34. In addition to this it is anticipated that there will be additional spend on making 
the park more attractive. IVCP income is currently forecasting at 70% of the 
target budget for 2019/20. However it is worth noting that there has been 
significant amount of growth comparing the first quarter of 2019/20 to the 
same period last financial year. This undercovery of income is offset by the 
car parking income which is proving to be lucrative area and expected to 
exceed income targets. There are also emerging opportunities being scoped 
out for income generating schemes for Lakeside which will highlighted in 
future reports. 

35. In Q1Lakeside Country Park has been reporting ongoing concerns about the 
levels of anti-social behaviour affecting the park after closing time. Issues 
include fire risk from disposable BBQs, fly tipping, litter, human waste and 
some drug litter/dealing. Further meetings will take place next quarter and 
options are being explored to tackle concerns.  This may have a financial 
implication moving forward. 

36.Arts and Culture: Is reporting a net overspend of £50,000 at the first quarter 
of 2019/20. A business case was submitted for the proposal of a new staffing 
structure which will complement the emerging business plan creating 
resilience and stability to the core, and casual staff, over the lifetime of the 
business plan. However it is to be expected that until the structure is fully 
embedded, existing pressures will continue.  

37.Non-staffing expenditure and income are forecast to meet the budget, 
although due to the seasonal nature of the service it is hard to forecast any 
variances from budget this early in the financial year. This will be monitored 
closely and any variances to budget will be highlighted. In the region of £1m 
worth of funding applications have been submitted with over £400k already 
secured and decisions on the rest pending. 

38.From a performance perspective ticket sales for Q1 showed positive signs 
with 62.48% of online sales compared to a national average of 60%. New Key 
Performance Indicators are currently being collated for this area and will be 
ready in Q2.

39.Housing Council Tax and Support: Is forecasting a £25,000 overspend. 
The variance is as a result of fluctuating Housing Benefit expenditure and the 
grant income received due to the continued roll out of Universal Credit.  The 
variance of amounts to approximately 0.1% of the projected Housing Benefit 
service costs.

33



Eastleigh Borough Council

40.Support Services: Is forecasting an £88,000 underspend in 2019/20 
predominantly due to staff vacancies. 

41.Development Management: Is reporting a £70,000 favourable variance. 
Analysis of past trends suggests that there will be a high number of 
applications going into 2019/20 leading to a £100,000 predicted over recovery 
of income, although it is difficult to predict future applications.  This is partly 
offset by £30,000 liability for high court appearance costs where QC is 
representing the Council.  This will be transferred to reserves at the end of the 
financial year once the final outturn is known. The transfer to reserves is 
shown within “Non Service Related Items” in para 50.   

42.Strategic Planning (corporate budgets): Is reporting a net favourable 
position of £86,000.  Staffing within this area is reporting a £94,000 overspend 
due to the corporate budget for staff vacancy savings sitting in this area, the 
savings that offset this are reflected within the individual staffing budgets as 
they arise.  In addition to this, the Council’s contribution to Parish Precepts 
has reduced in 2019/20 leading to a saving of £80,000.  There is also a 
favourable variance of £100,000 due to the restructuring of £300m of 
borrowing from short term borrowing to long term.  This is due to brokerage 
charges from the PWLB (long term) being cheaper than brokerage costs from 
the money markets (short term).

43.Planning Policy: Is forecasting on target compared to the budget set for 
2019/20. The Council continues to prioritise the adoption of the Local Plan 
and whilst early projections suggest spend will be on target, it is difficult to 
predict any unforeseen spend that may occur later in the financial year. 
 Currently the reserve stands at £397,000 and it is anticipated that this will be 
fully utilised in year.  Any impact will be considered as part of the revised 
budget process. 

44.Corporation Estates: Is forecasting £252,000 over recovery of income 
compared to budget. This is predominantly due to increases from various rent 
review negotiations. This underspend will be transferred to reserves, as 
shown in para 50 

45.Service Delivery – Specialist staffing: Is currently forecasting £86,000 
underspent.  A review is being carried by the Service Delivery Operational 
Manager to identify the best use of budgets for vacant posts and funding 
streams to better utilise underspends and improve service delivery. 

46.Service Delivery – Case Management: Is forecasting £85,000 overspend. 
This is in relation to agency spend to assist with the backlog for council tax 
and benefits which is likely to continue until Quarter 3.  The Case Services 
Manager is reviewing agency staff, with a view to seeing a reduction in 
agency and an increase in permanent staff with the necessary skill set to 
support specialist services.

47.Local Area Services Is reporting £40,000 underspend due to Civil 
Enforcement Officer vacancies. A recruitment drive is underway to fill the 

34



Eastleigh Borough Council

vacant posts by Quarter 3 of 2019/20.  Dynamic use of resources has meant 
that this has not yet had an adverse effect on Decriminalised parking; 
however this is not a sustainable way of working and therefore a fully 
established CEO team is critical to meet our obligations in respect of the 
Agency Agreement. 

48.Eastleigh Business Centre (Wessex House): Is reporting £50,000 under- 
recovery of income based on a forecast of current occupancy.  The Business 
Centre Manager is reviewing lettable space in year to try and maximise 
income.  The outcomes of the review will be reflected in the Medium Term 
Financial Plan.

49.Combined Heat and Power: Is currently forecasting to be on target as the 
supplier contract has been issued and maintenance of the equipment is now 
delivered in-house. This is anticipated to reduce costs which will offset the 
projected shortfall in income due to the purchasing power of Places Leisure 
Eastleigh. The full impact of the contract cannot be accurately assessed this 
early in year so will be kept under regular review.

50.Non Service Related Items: Non-service related items are currently 
projecting £312,000 adverse variance.  Increase in interest payable of circa 
£1.093m due to the restructuring of £300m of borrowing from short term 
variable rate borrowing to long term fixed rate borrowing.   This increased cost 
is due to be offset by reduced costs in future years, as short term variable 
rates are currently forecast to increase above the long term fixed rates 
achieved in April 2019. This is offset by net transfers from reserves. Transfers 
to reserves is forecast to be £781,000 for 2019/20 which includes the draw 
from reserves relating to interest payable as well as transfers to/from reserves 
highlighted in paragraphs 41 & 44.

35



Eastleigh Borough Council

Service Improvement

51.The 2018/19 Financial Outturn Report approved the allocation of £524,000 
from the general fund, as well as the continued use of Capital Receipts into 
2019/20 which will be used to support Service Delivery Case Management to 
release some staff to focus on process redesign work. This work will drive out 
process efficiencies to address backlogs and relieve existing pressures. The 
support to the Case Management Team is the biggest staff based 
improvement project at the current time, but there are also a number of 
smaller projects underway as part of the Council’s approach to continuous 
improvement.

52.The Council’s wider commitment to working in a case management led way, 
as agreed by the Future Eastleigh transformation programme, continues with 
the roll out of the Case Management IT system to Councillors and staff.  A roll 
out to external customers will come later once the system has been fully 
tested internally.  

Community Investment Programme

53.The Community Investment Programme (CIP) has a rolling budget of £93.2m 
for 2019/20.  The budget has increased by £16m since originally set which is 
primarily due to the approval of additional spend on housing projects 
approved by Cabinet in March and June 2019 (£9m) and the additional 
allocation of Developers Contributions to fund the Sports Pitch Relocation 
Project as part of the Stoneham Housing Development (£5m).  There have 
also been increases to the 2019/20 CIP budgets due to elements of slippage, 
whereby underspend on uncompleted schemes in 2018/19 have been rolled 
forward into future years budgets. 

54.As at 26 June 2019 £3.75m has been spent, representing 4% of the total 
budget.  The progress of CIP schemes are reported as part of the highlight 
reports completed by Project Managers monthly, and reported back to the 
relevant boards.  As with revenue budgets, project managers are asked to 
identify forecast spend for the year in order that total CIP budgets can be 
monitored effectively and also profiled into the most appropriate financial 
year.  This is an iterative process, with adjustments to budgets between 
financial years being made as and when reported to the relevant boards.

Efficiency and Improvement

55.The Budget for 2019/20 introduced a new Efficiency Strategy to address 
continuing financial pressures into the longer term. Although the Council 
finished 2018/19 with a strong financial position there will continue to be 
emphasis on the minimising of costs and maximising of income to enable this 
financially stable position to continue.  The approved strategy looks at the 
achievement of savings rising to £1.5M by 2022/23 as tabled below:

36



Eastleigh Borough Council

19/20
£000

20/21
£000

21/22
£000

22/23
£000

Target 200 500 1,000 1,500

56.The efficiency target will be monitored closely internally and will be reported 
regularly to Councillors as part of the Quarterly Performance Monitoring 
Process. On-going efficiencies will be identified through the work of the 
Change and Improvement Board.

Chief Financial Officer’s Statement

57.As the Council’s Statutory Finance Officer, the Chief Financial Officer is 
required to advise the Council on all pertinent financial matters including the 
level of balances and, in particular, to alert Councillors to any concerns she 
may have regarding the financial well-being of the Council.  

58.The financial monitoring process is a very important element of the Council’s 
financial arrangement as it assesses how effective the day to day 
management of budgets is actually been throughout the year. Any unforeseen 
overspends and underspends can distort the Council’s financial position and 
financial planning process 

59.A key element of the financial process is accurate budgeting and forecasting. 
Historically there are underspends in  revenue budgets and it is important that 
these are identified by service managers as soon as they are foreseen. There 
is continued efforts to improve identification of budget variances, and ensure 
these are reflected within the rolling budget. The aim is to ensure greater 
accountability of budget holders and therefore improved financial 
management. As explained in the financial summary, training and additional 
support is being rolled out across the Service Leads and Senior Managers to 
improve financial controls and to assist with more accurate forecasting. 

60.The revenue monitoring report shows a forecast outturn position highlighting a 
small forecast favourable position £94,000 which is a net position of a number 
of services indicating budget variances, both positive and negative. As always 
pressures and savings will be considered as part of the revised budget 
process. Accurate forecasting and budgeting is key to financial resilience for 
the Council. The development of comprehensive efficiency plans across the 
Council will also be important during this financial year to allow continued 
financial stability. 

61.The implementation of the Future Eastleigh programme, particularly with 
regard to Service Redesign, will have significant impact on the Council’s 
budget for the future. The progress of the programme is being monitored 
regularly and as phases are adopted Members will be updated on the 
milestones reached and their financial impact.

37



Eastleigh Borough Council

Risk Assessment

62.The purpose of the financial monitoring process is to give Councillors the 
assurance that the Council’s finances are performing broadly in line with the 
Budget. This report is integral to the risk management process in respect of 
the Council’s finances. A full risk assessment in respect of the Council’s 
current and future financial position is included within the Provisional Outturn, 
Medium Term Budget Strategy and Budget reports that are submitted to 
Cabinet and Council.  Appendix 4 contains the current performance and 
financial risk assessment.

Equality and Diversity Implications

63.The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
does not relate to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of 
opportunity, or fostering good relations between different people.  An Equality 
Impact Assessment has not been carried out.

Conclusion

64.The Corporate Financial Monitoring Statement, as well as providing a 
comprehensive snapshot of the Council’s finances, provides the opportunity to 
advise Councillors of significant financial issues that may impact on the 
Council’s finances. The overall revenue position at 30 June 2019 shows a 
forecast favourable position of £94,000. 

65.The significant performance areas outlined within this report, together with the 
overview of service KPIs, give Councillors an opportunity to understand 
current performance and risks impacting the delivery of services to customers. 
Whilst the organisation is continuing to deliver a dynamic range of services 
there are some performance areas needing attention and rectification of these 
issues is important in ensuring the Council is continuing to meet customer 
need. 

GAETANA WISEMAN
HEAD OF PERFORMANCE AND GOVERNANCE MANAGER

Date: 21 June 2019
Contact Officer: Gaetana Wiseman, Emma Pearce, Diccon Bright 
Tel No:
e-mail: gaetana.wiseman@eastleigh.gov.uk 

emma.pearce@eastleigh.gov.uk; 
Diccon.bright@eastleigh.gov.uk 

Appendices Attached: 4

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

38

mailto:emma.pearce@eastleigh.gov.uk
mailto:Diccon.bright@eastleigh.gov.uk


Eastleigh Borough Council

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

 Background Papers: None.

39



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 - Corporate KPI spreadsheet 
R

o
w

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 
Team & service 

area

KPI 

category

KPI frequency & 

polarity

KPI thresholds

(for RAG status)
KPI target KPI definition April May 

1

Customer Higher = better Baseline for 2018/19 - 

98k

Total Attendance (The 

Point & Berry Theatres)

2

Customer Higher = better Baseline being 

established  and will be 

implemented Q4 2019 

Customer Satisfaction 

(The Point & Berry 

Theatres)

TBC TBC

6

Customer Higher = better Green >=90%

Amber <=80%

Red <80%

Percentage of team PIs 

that are green 58% 50%

10

Processes Higher = better Green >50%

Amber >40%

Red <30%

L1&2 CMOs with 

broadened skills for team 

resilience

57% 57%

11

Customer Higher = better 95% of target IVCP visitor numbers % of 

target

109.5% 109%

12

Customer Higher = better Gross takings IVCP - 

against projected income 

figures

77% 67.0%

13

Customer Higher = better 95% of target Car park takings IVCP 136% above 

target

80% above 

target

14

Customer Higher = better 95% of target Lakeside conference 

takings

118% 117%

18

Customer Monthly

Higher = better

Green > 95%

Amber > 85%

Red < 85%

Satisfaction rate at 95% 

or above

Feedback regarding 

customer service rated at 

satisfied or above

94% 93%

22

Processes Higher = better Green > target

Amber within 5% of 

target

Red > 5% from target

Service area specific skills 

base (% of team trained)
83%

No data for 

May

S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
li

v
e
ry

Country Parks

Customer 

Services

Art & Culture

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
li

v
e
ry

Case 

Management 

(Delivery)

41



23

Processes Monthly

Higher = better

Green > 10%

Amber > 5%

Red < 5%

10% % of customer 

interactions routed to self-

service

11% 10%

24

Processes Monthly

Higher = better

Green > 65%

Amber > 60%

Red < 60%

65% % of all customer 

interactions resolved at 

first point of contact

61% 60%

25

Processes Monthly

Higher = better

Green > target

Amber within 5% of 

target

Red > 5% from target

80% % of calls answered vs 

offered (taking into 

account peak times during 

the year)

79%

Target = 

80%

Actual = 

80%

26

Processes Monthly

Higher = better

Green >75%

Amber > 65%

Red < 65%

75% % calls answered in less 

than 60 seconds 36% 41%

27
Direct Services - 

Countryside

Customer Higher = better Anything less than B LAMs score adapted to 

countryside sites (due 

June)

Figures not 

yet available 

Figures not 

yet available 

28
Customer Higher = better £705k Accumalative Garden 

Waste Revenue

£381,058 £720,823

29
Customer Higher = better £850k Accumalative Trade 

Waste Revenue

£203,076 TBC

30

Customer Quarterly

Higher = better

45% Percentage of total 

domestic waste collected 

sent for recycling (qrtrly) 

National target 50% by 

2025

Figures not 

yet available 

Figures not 

yet available 

31

Customer Quarterly

Lower = better

440kgs Kilograms of domestic 

residual waste collected 

per household (qrtrly)

Figures not 

yet available 

Figures not 

yet available 

32

Customer Quarterly

Lower = better

10% Level of contamination at 

point of collection and 

disposal (quarterly report)

Figures not 

yet available 

Figures not 

yet available 

33

Customer Quarterly

Lower = better

750kgs Total household waste 

arising (raw data) for 

Eastleigh (KGs)

Figures not 

yet available 

Figures not 

yet available 

34
Direct Services - 

StreetScene

Customer Bi-monthly Anything less than a B LAMs score (bi-monthly) >B >B

Direct Services - 

Domestic waste 

& recycling

Customer 

Services
S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
li

v
e
ry

S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
li

v
e
ry

42



35

Direct Services - 

Technical 

Services

Customer Higher = better 80% Overall client satisfaction 

score for construction and 

maintenance

91% 80%

36

Direct Services - 

Technical 

Services 

(workshops)

Customer Lower = better Anything less than 3 (Fleet) Operator 

Compliance Risk Score 

(OCRS) score (quarterly)

<3 <3

40

Direct Services - 

Domestic waste 

& recycling

Processes Lower = better <300 Total missed bins – 

Residual waste & 

recycling (includes depot 

fault, customer fault & not 

proven)

357 415

41
Direct Services - 

StreetScene

Processes Higher = better 95% - target time within 5 

working days 

Clearing of Flytipping 

completed on time 

96% 97%

42

Customer Higher = better Amber within 50% of 

target                            

Red more than 50% of 

target

% change on previous 

year

Number of on and off 

street PCNs issued
542 577

43

Customer Higher = better Amber up to 5% negative                        

Red over 5% negative

Growth on previous year 

(by month)

Cashless parking trend 

(currently RingGo) 9,315 10,200

44

Local Area 

Services - 

Parking

Customer Higher = better Amber up to 5% negative                        

Red over 5% negative

% change on previous 

year (KPI being revised)

Off Street revenue current 

budget (£,000) - £625 TBC

48

Processes Higher = better Amber within 5% of 

target                            

Red over 5% of target                        

100% response within 

SLA

Salesforce revenues 

inspection cases (% 

responded to within SLA)
100% 100%

51

Specialist 

Services -

Economy 

(Business Rates)

Customer Higher = better <95% amber Annual target 99.2% % of NDR collected. 

Cummulative annual 

target 100%

Target = 9.8%

Actual = 9.4%

Target = 

18.9%

Actual = 

19.1%

52

Specialist 

Services -

Economy 

(Council Tax)

Customer Higher = better <95% amber Annual target 97.3% % of Council Tax 

collected annual target 

97.3%

Target = 9.7%

Actual = 9.6%

Target = 

19.2%

Actual = 

19.2%

Local Area 

Services

S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
li

v
e
ry

S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
li

v
e
ry

S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
li

v
e
ry

Local Area 

Services

43



53

Specialist 

Services -

Economy 

(Employment 

land)

Customer Higher = better Annual target 50% % of requests for 

employment land satisfied

Figures not 

yet available 

Figures not 

yet available 

54

Specialist 

Services -

Economy 

(Primary 

Authority)

Customer Lower = better <3% amber Primary Authority, 

complaints and accidents 

at least 5% below average 

for sector

55

Customer Higher = better Annual target 90% % of establishments 

inspected this month 

achieving >3

100% 100%

56

Customer Higher = better <85% Annual target 90% Cumulative percentage for 

the current year of 

establishments inspected 

achieving >3

100% 100%

60

Specialist 

Services -

Economy 

(Council Tax)

Processes Higher = better < 3 days Response within 3 

working days

Enquiries or general 

complaints responded to 

within 3 days

16% 12%

67

Processes Higher = better 3 days -  YTD Monthly 

average 80%

Flytipping complaints 

responded to within 

specified time periods

3 cases 100% 2 cases 50%

68

Processes Higher = better 3 working days SLA           

YTD - Monthly average 

59%

No of Environmental 

Protection requests 

initially responded to 

within 3 working days of 

being reported vs number 

received

19 cases 58% 

of total 

requests

25 cases 

60% of total 

requests

69

Processes Higher = better 2 weeks - 11 YTD Temporary TROs 

delivered

4 7

70

Processes Higher = better 5 working days - 229 

YTD

Highway enquiries 

needing investigation

115 (75 - 

100% 

answered)

114 (88 - 

100% 

answered)

S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
li

v
e
ry

S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
li

v
e
ry

Specialist 

Services -

Environment

Specialist 

Services -

Economy 

(Commercial)

44



71

Processes Higher = better < 8 weeks - Monthly 

average YTD 59%

Noise complaints 

responded to on time (3 

working days)

YTD 38 cases 

93% of total 

noise 

complaints

40 cases out 

of 52 - 77%

72

Processes Higher = better < 13 weeks - monthly 

average YTD 62%

No of planning 

applications commented 

on by the Ecologist within 

a specified time 

8 apps out of 

15 responded 

to = 53% 

10 apps out 

of 15 - 66%

76

Customer Lower = better Based on average from 

previous year (36.7 for 

2018/19)

Average waiting time all 

properties (band 2 and 3)

32.7 32.4

Customer Higher = better % increase against 

previous year

Increase in interactions 

with our own programmes 

e.g. Healthworks, 

Figures not 

yet available 

Figures not 

yet available 

Customer Lower = better Not a specific target as 

dependent on 

applications, eligibility 

Total number of 

households on housing 

register (monthly)

1830 (1859 

2018)

1704 (1832 

2018)

Customer Higher = better Based on average from 

previous year (16)

Number of homeless 

cases prevented through 

the intervention of housing 

16 22

77

Customer Higher = better Within 5% of previous 

year

Total number of DFG 

referrals completed

14 4

81

Processes Higher = better 100% Government Statutory 

returns completed ( as per 

Single Data List )

100% 100%

82

Processes Lower = better Green < 22                

Amber 22-26 

22 days Time taken to process 

Housing Benefit (HB) new 

claims (average days)

24 24

83

Processes Lower = better Green < 9 days           

Amber 9-11

9 days Time taken for processing 

new HB change events 

(average days)

7.33 7.93

S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
li

v
e
ry

Specialist 

Services - Health 

& Wellbeing

S
e
rv

ie
 D

e
li

v
e
ry

Specialist 

Services -

Environment

45



84

Processes Higher = better 90% % of DFGs completed 

within 120 days

29.00% 25.00%

85

Processes Higher = better cumulative 54 pa Licensable HMOs 

(Housing Act 2004) 

actually licensed 

1 2

86

Processes Lower = better Amber 0 - 10 No outstanding after 10 

workng days 

Number of new 

applications (online 

complete or pending) over 

10 working days since 

application

94 40

87

Processes Lower = better 1-80 Amber No outstanding after 28 

workng days

Number of suspended 

applications over 28 days 

since suspension 

(snapshot figure monthly)

37 93

93

Processes Higher = better Statutory 60% statutory target (1 of 

2 - 50% YTD)

Major applications 

processed within 13 

weeks or agreed time

1 of 1 - 100% 0% (0 of 1)

94

Processes Higher = better Statutory 65% statutory target (22 

of 26 - 84% YTD)

Minor applications 

processed within 8 weeks 

or agreed time

13 of 15 - 86% 84% (9 of 

11)

95

Processes Higher = better Statutory 80% statutory target (108 

of 116 - 93% YTD)

Other applications 

processed within 8 weeks 

or agreed time

52 of 59 - 88% 98% (56 of 

57)

96

Processes Higher = better Statutory 80% (130 of 142 - 91.5% 

YTD)

Combined non-major 

development within 8 

weeks or agreed time

95% (65 of 

68)

97

Processes Lower = better < 10% (4 of 9 from 244 - 

1.64%)

% Planning appeals 

allowed as % of all 

planning application 

decisions

2 of 6 appeals 

allowed 1.52% 

(131 

decisions)

2 of 3 

appeals 

allowed 

1.56% (113 

decisions)

Processes Higher = better 100% Number of land charge 

requests responded to 

within 10 working days

280 of 282 - 

99.6% YTD

280 OF 282 - 

99.6% YTD

98

Processes Higher = better 80% within priority 

timescale (99 YTD with 

62% within target)

Enforcement cases closed 43 56 with 60% 

within target

S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
li

v
e
ry

Specialist 

Services - Health 

& Wellbeing

S
e
rv

ie
 D

e
li

v
e
ry

Specialist 

Services -

Housing & 

Development 

(Development 

Management)

46



100

Performance & 

Governance 

(Democratic 

Services)

Customer Higher = better 5 hours training delivered 

with a satisfaction rate of 

80%

Provide an average of five 

hours of learning and 

development to elected 

members per month with 

a satisfaction rate of 80% 

in Purdah 

period -

training not 

provided and 

no current 

satisfaction 

measure 

Over 5 hrs 

delivered 

Satisfaction 

score 84%

101

Performance & 

Governance 

(Performance)

Customer Lower = better 100% should be resolved 

within 15 working days

% Corporate Complaints 

received in month that go 

outside of SLA of 15 

working days response 

time

63% 

answered  

outside  SLA 

46% 

answered  

outside SLA

99
Safety & 

Resilience

Customer Higher = better 100% Service teams with up-to-

date Business Continuity 

Plans

8 out of 10 8 out of 10

102

Customer Milestone Deliver an annual 

strategic cycle

Plans for 

conducting 

annual cycle 

not in place.  

Annual strat 

report not 

complete.

 Annual strat 

report not 

complete. 

Annual cycle 

discussion 

sunder way

103

Customer Milestone Local plan and 

programme of Policy work

Discussed 

with internal 

stakeholders

Discussed 

with internal 

stakeholders

107

Processes Higher = better Increase by 30 per month Increase Facebook page 

likes/followers by 30 per 

month

1,653 1,733

108

Processes Higher = better Increase by 50 per month Increase Enews 

subscribers by 50 per 

month

7,049 7,291

109

Processes Higher = better Increase by 50 per month Increase customers with 

MyEastleigh accounts by 

50 per month

15,312 15,877

Communications, 

Engagement & 

Marketing

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

Strategic 

Planning

47



110
Monitoring 

Officer

Processes Lower = better 3 working days Provide Local 

Government Ombudsman 

with responses and 

documents dealt with 

within timescales set by or 

agreed with LGO

2 cases 1 case

111
Performance & 

Governance

Processes Higher = better 100% 100% return rate Completion of statutory 

government returns 

across Council 

100% 100%

112

Processes Higher = better 100% 100% return rate within 

10 working days and 1 

working day for Cabinet

Ensure 100% publication 

of agendas and minutes 

for all committees within 

10 working days (Cabinet 

minutes within 1 working 

day)

100% 80% (1 out 

of 5 not 

completed in 

10 days)

115

Processes N/A Statutory Meet all Electoral 

Commission deadlines 

for delivery of elections

Undertake a 

borough/parish elections 

in May 2019.

On target Complete

116

Processes Higher = better Statutory 96% response rate and 

publication of accurate 

register by 1st December

Undertake and deliver an 

effective electoral annual 

canvass August to 

December. 

N/A N/A  

117

Performance & 

Governance 

(Projects)

Processes Higher = better 100% compliance 100% compliance with 

highlight reporting across 

all strategic projects 

91.80% 100.00%

118 Directorate ROI

Customer Monthly - Higher 

Case / Lower Cost 

is better

Green - < £10

Amber - < £50

Red - > £100

£10 per case Total number of cases 

processed against the 

total staff Monthly actual 

cost for Support Services

3355 cases 

against 

£187,184 = 

£55.79

3398 cases 

against 

£191,321 = 

£56.30

119
Customer Monthly - Higher 

better

Green - > 90%

Amber - > 85%

Red - < 85%

90% Total number of cases 

processed inside of SLAs

85% 90%

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Performance & 

Governance 

(Elections)

Performance & 

Governance 

(Democratic 

Services)

Case 

Management

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

48



120

Customer Monthly - Higher 

better

Green - > 90%

Amber - > 85%

Red - < 85%

90% % of invoices paid within 

ten days

52% 55%

127
Customer Monthly - Lower 

better

Green - < 7 days

Amber - < 10 days

Red - > 10 days

7 days Time to for a recruitment 

requisition to be approved

5.5 days 5.5 days

128

Customer Monthly - Lower 

better

Green - < 5 days

Amber - < 5.5 days

Red - > 5.5 days

5 days Letter of offer, variations 

& contracts issued with 5 

working days of request

7.2 days 6.2 days

129
Customer Monthly - Higher 

better

Green - > 100%

Amber - > 95%

Red - < 90%

100% Service availability (i.e. 

email, www group by 

criticality)

100% 100%

130

Customer Monthly - Higher 

better

Increase in count - 

percentage increase tbc

Total to track pattern of 

improvement

Number of customer 

interactions that can be 

self-served

106 106

134

Customer Monthly - Higher 

better

Green - > 90%

Amber - > 85%

Red - < 85%

90% Delivery of secure IT to 

users (measure through 

compliance and 

adherence to patching 

practices) Measure of OS 

patches within 30 days

97% 78%

135

Customer Monthly - Higher 

better

Green - > 90%

Amber - > 85%

Red - < 85%

100% To provide completion 

memos in respect of 

transactions within 48 wkg 

hrs of completion 0 out 0 = 

N/A%

0 out 0 = 

N/A%

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Human 

Resources

IT

Legal Services

Case 

Management

49



136

Customer Monthly - Higher 

better

Green - > 90%

Amber - > 85%

Red - < 85%

100% Delivery of all Planning 

related activities in a 

compliant manner aligned 

to statutory deadlines

N/A – first 

month – will 

report in July 

for June

137

Customer Monthly - Higher 

better

Green - > 90%

Amber - > 85%

Red - < 85%

100% Delivery of all Asset 

management related 

activities within 5 days of 

case being received

N/A – first 

month – will 

report in July 

for June

138

Customer Monthly - Higher 

better

Green - > 90%

Amber - > 85%

Red - < 85%

100% Number of Certificates of 

Lawful Use (Proposed or 

Existing) falling due to be 

determined this month 

and determined within 

statutory or agreed 

timescales 

 6 out of 6 = 

100%

7 out of 7 = 

100%

139

Customer Monthly - Higher 

better

Green - > 90%

Amber - > 85%

Red - < 85%

100% FOI/EIR requests 

(including reviews) falling 

due to determined this 

month and determined 

within statutory timescales

75% 77%

143

Financial Monthly - Lower 

better

Green - > 5% 

Amber - < 5%

Red - < 3%

Reduction

Sustained pattern of 

reduction in debt owed to 

the council

Debt Collection - 

Measured by overall 

council debt, amount of 

invoices outstanding for 

more than 100 days.

145

People Monthly - Higher 

better

Green - > 90%

Amber - > 85%

Red - < 85%

90% Training attendance 82.0%

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Legal Services

Finance

Human 

Resources

50



146

People National average 

<20%.  For EBC, 

during 12 month 

period 15/11/17 to 

15/11/18, ‘voluntary 

resignation’ turnover 

rate was just under 

18%.  Aim for below 

10% within 2 years.

Green - < 15%

Amber - < 18%

Red - > 18%

<15% Turnover (no of people 

resigned/headcount)

YTD 

Corporate - 

16%

Service - 28%

YTD 

Corporate - 

15%

Service - 

20%

148

People Monthly - Lower 

better

Green - < 7 days

Amber - < 7.5 days

Red - > 7.5 days

7 days Support Services - 

Sickness (number of days 

lost per person)

6 days

(CMO - 9, 

Specilaists - 5, 

Property - 4, 

average - 6)

7 days

(CMO - 10 , 

Specilaists - 

5.5, Property 

- 4.5, 

average - 7)

149

People Monthly - Lower 

better

Green - < 3.5%

Amber - < 4%

Red - > 4%

3.50% Support Services - 

Sickness (number of days 

lost as percentage)

2.82%  (CMO - 

4, Specialists - 

2.24, Property - 

2.22, average - 

2.82%)

3.17%  

(CMO - 4.73, 

Specialists - 

2.3 , 

Property - 

2.48 , 

average - 

3.17%)

150

People Monthly - Lower 

better

Green - < 7 days

Amber - < 7.5 days

Red - > 7.5 days

7 days Corporate - Sickness  

(average number of days 

lost per person)

7.6 days 8 days

151

People Monthly - Lower 

better

Green - < 3.5%

Red - < 3.5%

3.50% Corporate - Sickness 

(number of days lost as 

percentage)

3.29% 3.30%

152

People Monthly - Higher 

better

Green - > 90%

Amber - > 75%

Red - < 75%

90% Achieving apprenticeship  

target - 15 per year

13 apprentices 

87%

13 

apprentices 

87%

153

People Monthly - Lower 

better

Green - < 28 days

Amber - < 30 days

Red - > 30 days

28 days Time to recruit 27.5 days 63 days

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Human 

Resources

51



155

Processes Monthly - Lower 

better

Red - > 10%

Amber - > 5%

Green - < 5%

Various No of Grade 1 and 2 

accepted 

recommendations 

outstanding/ not fully 

implemented on time

65% 50%

156

Processes Monthly - Lower 

better

Red - > 10%

Amber - > 5%

Green - < 5%

Various No of Grade 3 and 4 

accepted 

recommendations 

outstanding/ not fully 

implemented on time

157

Customer Quarterly Red <60%

Amber 60% to <80%

Green 80% or more

Net revenue generated as 

% of Corporation Estate 

budget

TBC TBC

158

Customer Quarterly Green 5% or less

Amber >5% to 8%

Red >8%

Voids as % of total 

number of lettable units

TBC TBC

159

Customer Quarterly Green 30% or less

Amber >30% to 60%

Red >60%

% of total aged arrears 

(by monetary value) over 

180 days old (excl. 

arrears with legal or 

payment plans)

TBC TBC

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Internal Audit

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Property 

Services

52



Appendix 2

Original Rolling Actual Forecast Outturn

Budget Budget Year to Date Variance

Portfolio Name £ £ £ £ £

Area Committees (Net of Gross Cost Adjustment) 1,041,360 1,041,360 236,205 1,041,360 0

Skills & Business 8,180 33,910 (104,101) 74,910 (41,000)

Environment 4,609,260 4,584,000 349,151 4,603,000 (19,000)

Health 1,229,820 1,229,820 255,394 1,274,820 (45,000)

Planning & Property (3,090,600) (3,151,460) 1,379,125 (3,689,460) 538,000

Social Policy 235,380 235,380 (315,212) 254,380 (19,000)

Transport (1,115,910) (1,069,580) (288,664) (1,061,580) (8,000)

Position on Services 2,917,490 2,903,430 1,511,898 2,497,430 406,000

Non Service Related Items (3,182,630) (3,182,630) (2,870,630) (2,870,630) (312,000)

Net Position (265,140) (279,200) (1,358,732) (373,200) 94,000

MONITORING SUMMARY - 2019/20 1 APRIL TO 30 June 2019

53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 

Original Rolling Actual Budget

Budget Budget Jun-19 Remaining

2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

PROGRAMME BOARD £ £

Housing 56,724,160             67,024,210 3,320,750 63,703,460

Future Eastleigh Service Redesign 75,000                    903,664 122,090 781,574

Infrastructure 2,669,720               3,928,490 128,910 3,799,580

Investment Property -                         -                      -                     

Leisure * -                         212,300 -401,840 614,140

Regeneration * 13,948,680             9,922,610 -517,730 10,440,340

LAC - Bishopstoke, Fair Oak & Horton Heath 2,229,790               2,476,710 18,060 2,458,650

LAC - Bursledon, Hamble & Hound 128,750                  365,710 10,850 354,860

LAC - Chandler's Ford & Hiltingbury 146,650                  200,030 -                     200,030

LAC - Eastleigh 38,730                    6,775,090 1,033,960 5,741,130

LAC - Hedge End, West End & Botley 1,012,180               1,452,510 31,850 1,420,660

76,973,660 93,261,324 3,746,900 89,514,424

* Negative values are in respect of the Council's policy on funding retentions in advance of payment, once

Retentions have been settled, these will balance to zero

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT PROGRAMME

QUARTER 1 - 2019/20

55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Ref Risk Description Cause(s) Existing Risk Controls Impact Likelihood

I L Total

1 Final accounts not approved by external 

auditors

Final accounts working 

papers not of sufficient 

standard to receive 

unqualified audit opinion

Compliance with the CIPFA CODE 

and EY requirements.

Moderate Very unlikely 3 1 3

2 Failure to deliver strategic priorities due 

to inaccurate financial forecasting

Service and corporate 

expenditure varying from 

plans set by need to fulfil 

strategic priorities

Business planning, budget 

strategy, monitoring and 

forecasting processes linked to 

strategic objectives requirements

Serious Unlikely 4 2 8

3 Key financial strategies set on the basis 

of inaccurate assessment of the 

Council's overall position

Poor budget preparation 

and poor financial 

monitoring

Sound and effective financial 

systems, Budget holders sign off 

budgets and monitoring 

information.  Central support 

provided to managers from 

Support Services - Financial 

Services Unit

Serious Unlikely 4 2 8

Risk Score 

(Existing 

Controls)

FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT 2019/20- RISK ASSESSMENT

Appendix 4 

57



Ref Risk Description Cause(s) Existing Risk Controls Impact Likelihood

I L Total

Risk Score 

(Existing 

Controls)

FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT 2019/20- RISK ASSESSMENT

Appendix 4 

4 Interest Rate Pressure Potential for rising interest 

rates above that 

anticipated as part of the 

budget

Budget strategy (Treasury 

Management), monitoring and 

forecasting processes. Interest rate 

reserve. Engagement of external 

advisor, Arlingclose, to provide 

advice on how the Council can 

manage its investment and 

borrowing portfolio.

Serious Unlikely 4 2 8

5 Additional Borrowing exceeding 

affordable levels

Additional borrowing will 

place pressure on the 

revenue budget 

particularly if interest rates 

rise

Budget strategy, monitoring and 

forecasting processes and treasury 

management strategy. Use of 

robust business cases factoring in 

returns based on long term interest 

rate projections.

Significant Unlikely 3 2 6

6 Minimum General Fund balance falls 

below minimum level

Poor control of income and 

expenditure budgets

Business planning, Budget 

monitoring systems and clear 

accountabilities for financial 

performance

Serious Very unlikely 4 1 4

7 Lack of specialist/technical knowledge 

across services and failure to recruit to 

key posts enabling areas to operate 

effectively

Poor succession planning, 

increased demand and 

other external factors 

including buoyant job 

market including better 

rates of pay externally    

Business Planning including 

resourcing/workforce planning as 

well as People Strategy and 

regular quarterly monitoring of staff 

retentlon/turnover

Serious Likely 4 4 16

58



Ref Risk Description Cause(s) Existing Risk Controls Impact Likelihood

I L Total

Risk Score 

(Existing 

Controls)

FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT 2019/20- RISK ASSESSMENT

Appendix 4 

8 Failure to redesign processes which 

could generate time and cost saving 

opportunities

Lack of resource/capacity 

within organisation to 

devote to service 

improvement work 

Development of business case to 

assess need for service (process) 

redesign opportunities through 

Change and Improvement 

Programme

Significant Possible 3 3 9

9 Failure to acheive strategic priorities 

due to poor performance or poor 

strategic planning

Poor business planning or 

unforeseenchanges in 

external environment or 

poor data quality

Strategic annual planning process, 

performance review, data quality 

improvement measures, risk 

management

Significant Possible 3 3 9

10 Failure to acheive strategic priorities Known performance  

issues remain 

unaddressed

Performance management and 

Management Team oversight. 

Quarterly reporting to Cllrs

Significant Unlikely 3 2 6

Impact ratings: (I) Likelihood ratings: (L)

Minor 1 Very unlikely 1

Moderate 2 Unlikely 2

Significant 3 Possible 3

Serious 4 Likely 4

Major 5 Very likely 5

The risk total is achieved by multiplying the impact score by the likelihood score. 

59



T
his page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL
FORWARD PLAN: June 2019 to April 2020

This Forward Plan sets out matters which may be considered by Cabinet in the four month period. It includes items on which a “key 
decision” is likely to be taken.

A KEY DECISION IS - An executive decision (whether or not taken by the Cabinet) which is likely to:

(1) result in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which amount to either £50,000 or 20% (whichever is the 
larger) of the gross expenditure budget for the service or general function to which the decision relates; or

(2) be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards within the 
Borough of Eastleigh.

The Plan also includes matters for likely decision relating to the Council’s policy or budget framework.

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

Thursday 11 July 2019

Yes Homelessness Prevention 
Strategy 

Cabinet  11 Jul 2019  To consider and approve the 
Council’s Homelessness 
Strategy.

Ross McClean, 
Strategic Lead 
(Health and 
Wellbeing) / 
Councillor Tina 
Campbell

61

A
genda Item

 9



KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

2

Yes Eastleigh Borough Council's 
Response to Hampshire County 
Council's Budget Consultation 

Cabinet  11 Jul 2019  Cabinet will be asked to 
approve the Borough 
Council’s response to 
Hampshire County Council’s 
Budget Consultation.

Diccon Bright, 
Strategic 
Planning 
Manager / 
Leader of the 
Council

Yes Air Quality Report Cabinet  11 Jul 2019  Cabinet will be asked to 
consider and approve the 
development of an Eastleigh 
Borough Air Quality Action 
Plan and the purchase of 
new continuous monitoring 
equipment.

Cali Sparks, 
Sustainable 
Transport Senior 
Specialist / 

Yes Project Brief for development 
west of Horton Heath 

Cabinet  11 Jul 2019  This report seeks 
endorsement of a Project 
Brief for land west of Horton 
Heath which is owned by the 
Council and subject to 
development plans for new 
homes and associated 
infrastructure.  The Brief will 
confirm the direction of travel 
or ‘roadmap’ for the 
Council’s development team 
responsible for the planning, 
design and implementation 
of the Council’s aspirations 
for the land.

Emily Howbrook, 
Strategy Led 
(Housing and 
Development) / 

62



KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

3

Yes Corporate Performance & 
Financial Monitoring 

Cabinet  11 Jul 2019  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel

To consider the quarterly 
report outlining the Council’s 
performance against 
outcomes in the Corporate 
Plan.

Andy Smith, 
Finance Lead 
Specialist 
(Deputy Chief 
Financial Officer), 
Gaetana 
Wiseman, 
Performance and 
Governance 
Manager, Diccon 
Bright, Strategic 
Planning 
Manager / 

Yes Members Allowances - Actual 
Amounts Paid 2018/19 

Cabinet  11 Jul 2019  Laura Johnston / 

Yes Eastleigh Borough Council's 
Property Assets Repair & 
Renewal Plan 

Cabinet  11 Jul 2019  Cabinet will be asked to 
approve the repair and 
renewal budget list for the 
next five years, 2019/20 to 
2023/24, following the 
collation for an asset of all 
buildings and land owned or 
leased by the Borough 
Council.  This will need to be 
reviewed and updated on an 
annual basis going forward.

Nigel Stephens, 
Lead Building 
Surveyor / 

63



KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

4

Yes CIP Schemes Approval Cabinet  11 Jul 2019  To consider and approve 
Community Infrastructure 
Projects (CIP).

Sarah King, 
Corporate 
Director - 
Support Services 
/ 
Leader of the 
Council

Yes Property Transactions Cabinet  11 Jul 2019  To consider and approve 
property transactions.

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager / 
Councillor Keith 
House

19 September 2019

Yes Write Off Irrecoverable Debts Cabinet  11 Jul 2019  To approve the write-off of 
irrecoverable debts.

Andy Smith, 
Finance Lead 
Specialist 
(Deputy Chief 
Financial Officer) 
/ 

Yes Property Transactions Cabinet  19 Sep 2019  To consider and approve 
property transactions.

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager / 
Leader of the 
Council

Yes CIP Schemes Approval Cabinet  19 Sep 2019  To consider Community 
Investment Programme 
(CIP) schemes.

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist / 

64



KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

5

10 October 2019

Yes Medium Term Financial Plan Cabinet  10 Oct 2019  Audit & 
Resources 
Committee

Cabinet will be asked to 
comment on and approve 
the Borough Council’s 
Medium Term Financial 
Plan.

Andy Smith, 
Finance Lead 
Specialist 
(Deputy Chief 
Financial Officer) 
/ 

Yes Corporate Performance & 
Financial Monitoring 

Cabinet  10 Oct 2019  To consider the quarterly 
report outlining the Council’s 
performance against 
outcomes in the Corporate 
Plan.

Gaetana 
Wiseman, 
Performance and 
Governance 
Manager / 

Yes CIP Schemes Approval Cabinet  10 Oct 2019  To consider and approve 
Community Infrastructure 
Projects (CIP).

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist / 

Yes Property Transactions Cabinet  10 Oct 2019  To consider and approve 
property transactions.

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager / 

14 November 2019

65



KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

6

Yes Corporate Fees and Charges Cabinet  14 Nov 2019  All Pre Decision 
Scrutinies

To consider and approve 
Corporate Fees and 
Charges.

Andy Smith, 
Finance Lead 
Specialist 
(Deputy Chief 
Financial Officer) 
/ 

Yes CIP Schemes Approval Cabinet  14 Nov 2019  To consider and approve 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP) schemes.

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist / 

Yes Property Transactions Cabinet  14 Nov 2019  To consider and approve 
property transactions.

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager / 

16 December 2019

Yes Treasury Management Half 
Year Report 

Cabinet  16 Dec 2019  Audit & 
Resources 
Committee

To consider and approve the 
Treasury Management Half 
Year report.

Andy Smith, 
Finance Lead 
Specialist 
(Deputy Chief 
Financial Officer) 
/ 

Yes Adoption of the Eastleigh 
Borough Council Local Plan 

Cabinet  16 Dec 2019  To consider and approve the 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Local Plan.

Graham Tuck, 
Planning 
Planning Senior 
Specialist / 

66



KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

7

Yes CIP Schemes Approval Cabinet  16 Dec 2019  To consider and approve 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP) Schemes.

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist / 

Yes Property Transactions Cabinet  16 Dec 2019  To consider and approve 
property transactions.

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager / 

16 January 2020

Yes 2020 - 2021 Borough Council 
Budget 

Cabinet  16 Jan 2020  To consider and recommend 
the 2020 – 2021 Borough 
Council Budget to Council for 
approval.

Sarah King, 
Corporate 
Director - 
Support Services 
/ 

Yes Capital and Treasury Strategy Cabinet  16 Jan 2020  To consider and approve the 
Capital and Treasury 
Strategy.

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist / 

Yes One Community and CitA 
Funding 

Cabinet  16 Jan 2020  To consider and approve the 
funding and Service Level 
Agreement (SLA) for One 
Community and CitA 
funding.

Ross McClean, 
Strategic Lead 
(Health and 
Wellbeing) / 

Yes CIP Schemes Approval Cabinet  16 Jan 2020  To consider and approve 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP) Schemes.

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist / 

67



KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

8

Yes Property Transactions Cabinet  16 Jan 2020  To consider and approve 
property transactions.

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager / 

18 February 2020

Yes Corporate Performance & 
Financial Monitoring 

Cabinet  18 Feb 2020  To consider the quarterly 
report outlining the Council’s 
performance against 
outcomes in the Corporate 
Plan.

Gaetana 
Wiseman, 
Performance and 
Governance 
Manager / 

Yes CIP Schemes Approval Cabinet  18 Feb 2020  To consider and approve 
Community Infrastructure 
Programme (CIP) Schemes.

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist / 

Yes Property Transactions Cabinet  18 Feb 2020  To consider and approve 
property transactions.

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager / 

2 April 2020

Yes CIP Schemes Approval Cabinet  2 Apr 2020  To consider and approve 
Community Infrastructure 
Programme (CIP) Schemes.

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist / 

Yes Property Transactions Cabinet  2 Apr 2020  To consider and approve 
property transactions.

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager / 

68



KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

9

Yes Corporate Performance & 
Financial Monitoring 

Cabinet  18 Feb 2020  To consider the quarterly 
report outlining the Council’s 
performance against 
outcomes in the Corporate 
Plan.

Gaetana 
Wiseman, 
Performance and 
Governance 
Manager / 

Yes CIP Schemes Approval Cabinet  18 Feb 2020  To consider and approve 
Community Infrastructure 
Programme (CIP) Schemes.

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist / 

Yes Property Transactions Cabinet  18 Feb 2020  To consider and approve 
property transactions.

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager / 

2 April 2020

Yes CIP Schemes Approval Cabinet  2 Apr 2020  To consider and approve 
Community Infrastructure 
Programme (CIP) Schemes.

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist / 

Yes Property Transactions Cabinet  2 Apr 2020  To consider and approve 
property transactions.

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager / 

FOOTNOTES:
Public Participation will apply to enable representations to be made at the time the decision is to be taken.
Written reports for public items will be available as part of the agenda papers and are usually available one week prior to 
the meeting.

69



KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

10

Contact Officer: Laura Johnston – Lead Specialist – Democratic Services
Publication Date: 26 June 2019

70



Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel – 2019/20

Work Programme

As at 21 May 2019

Date of 
Meeting

Item for Consideration Focus for Scrutiny Additional Attendance 
By

TBC

30/05 Parking Policy Pre-decision scrutiny Jason Light

10/07 Environment Cllr Kyrle
Quarterly Corporate & 
Financial Monitoring 
Report

Gaetana 
Wiseman/Andy Smith

Homelessness Prevention 
Strategy

Ross McClean

05/09 Transport Cllr Airey
Residents’ Survey
Enforcement
Late Reports Gaetana Wiseman

03/10 Quarterly Corporate & 
Financial Monitoring 
Report

Gaetana 
Wiseman/Andy Smith

Waste collection in new 
developments

To scrutinise plans for waste collection in new developments Paul Naylor

71

A
genda Item

 10



Recycling Scrutiny of Performance and Policy Paul Naylor

07/11 Health & Wellbeing
Review of Places Leisure How is it performing against original success criteria, how 

rectifying, future plans, health & wellbeing, not just financial
Janine Pickering/Ross 
McClean

05/12 Social Policy/Tackling 
Deprivation

Cllr Campbell
Ross McClean

Houses in Multiple 
Occupation

Ross McClean

30/01/20 Economy Cllr Pretty
Commercialisation 
Discussion

06/02/20 General Fund Budget To scrutinise the budget Sarah King
Quarterly Corporate & 
Financial Monitoring 
Report

Gaetana 
Wiseman/Andy Smith

12/03/20 Strategy & Support 
Services (Housing)

Joint meeting with A&R or like budget invite all Cllrs to attend Diccon Bright

Items 
for 
2020/21

Community Safety Review

Quarterly Corporate & 
Financial Monitoring 
Report (3rd week of June 
2020)

Annual review to meet statutory duty Melvin Hartley

72


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Homelessness Prevention Strategy
	Appendix 1 - Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy V8

	8 Quarterly Corporate and Financial Monitoring
	Appendix 1 Corporate KPI spreadsheet operational service level final
	Appendix 2  Q1 monitoring summary
	Appendix 3 CIP Q1 final summary
	Appendix 4 Q1 201920 Risk assessment

	9 Cabinet Forward Plan
	10 Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel's Work Programme

